
From: Fowler, Katherine  

Sent: 09 April 2019 11:58 
To: Hould, Hannah 

Subject: FW: s. 51 Licensing Act 2003 - Review Application - @Home, 5 Bridge Street, Salisbury, SP1 
2ND  

 
Dear Hannah,  
 
I write further to the application to review the Premises licence for @Home/ 
 
On the 18th March 2019 Public Protection objected to the Premises Licence Variation application for 
@home based on various reasons which are outlined in the attached email response. This 
department supports the application made to review the licence based on our lack of confidence in 
management to sufficiently manage and control noise from the premises to minimise disturbance 
and prevent a public nuisance.  
 
Lack of confidence in management  
 
One of the conditions on the current Licence for @home relates to the requirement for a noise 
limiting device. At a meeting held on 21st February 2019 with Louella, Licence holder she advised 
that she was not aware that a noise limiting device had been installed within any of the rooms within 
@home where music is played. Following the meeting we received photographs of a mixing system 
which Louella stated was the noise limiting device and was set between 0-3Db. This is an incredibly 
low noise level and not even perceptible by the human ear.  
 
During the meeting held on 21st February 2019, I provided Louella with various information and 
advice on managing and controlling noise within the premises, including ensuring she was not in 
breach of her conditions which relate to noise. We discussed the previous noise complaints between 
2015 and 2017 and the noise consultant’s report that recommended various measures including the 
installation of sound insulation, creating a room within a room construction, silenced ventilation, 
servicing of space to prevent noise breakout, structural isolation of all speakers and sound lock 
lobbies. Louella advised of the difficulties in implementing these recommendations but confirmed 
that regular monitoring visits were carried out at the nearby sensitive receptor to ensure noise levels 
were inaudible during performances with live/amplified music. I advised Louella to submit a Noise 
Management Plan with her variation application to demonstrate what control measures are 
currently in place and would be implemented to minimise noise disturbance to neighbouring 
sensitive receptors. This was not submitted.  
 
Following my email dated 18th March 2019 to Louella advising that Public Protection would be 
objecting to the variation application I contacted Louella by email on 1st April 2019 to arrange a 
suitable date to visit the premises to identify the noise limiting device and provide further advice on 
noise management within the premises. Louella was unable to meet on the days that I am in work 
(Mon, Tues and Thurs) until after the initial date of the hearing.  
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you require any further information.  
 
Kind regards  
 
Kat Fowler  
Environmental Health Officer 
 
Environmental Protection, Public Protection Services  



Tel: 01722 434346 
Internal: 54346 
E-mail: katherine.fowler@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
NB: I work Mondays, Tuesdays and Thursdays  
 
Web: www.wiltshire.gov.uk 
Follow Wiltshire Council: 

    

 
Want to know more about your alcohol consumption? Please take our short survey* 
*Please note that the anonymised data will be collated to inform service development and commissioning in the 
future 

 
 
 
 
From: Fowler, Katherine  
Sent: 18 March 2019 17:21 

To:  
Cc: Hould, Hannah 

Subject: Premises Licence Variation Application for @Home, Bridge Street, Salisbury 

 
Dear Louella,  
 
I write with reference to the Premises Licence Variation application for @Home, Bridge Street, 
Salisbury, SP1 2ND.  
 
The premises currently holds a licence for regulated entertainment performances (live/recorded 
music) between the hours of 10.00 and 22.00, 7 days a week. The application proposes to extend 
these hours until 00.00 Monday to Thursdays and 03.00 on Fridays and Saturdays.  This department 
has significant concerns that a public nuisance will be caused if regulated entertainment is licensed 
within the proposed extended hours. This premises has previously held a late night licence and 
operated into the early hours of the morning, and between 2015 and 2017 this department received 
numerous complaints in relation to noise disturbance from the premises. Since @home has been 
operating we have received one complaint in relation to noise from loud music following a 
Temporary Event Notice that was held on Saturday 16th February 2019 until 03.00.  
 
One of the conditions on your licence relates to the requirement to install a noise limiting device. 
Having met with you on 21st February 2019 you advised that that you were not aware of a noise 
limiting device being installed in any of the rooms within @Home where music is played. We 
received a photograph of your mixing system which you stated was your noise limiting device and is 
set between 0 – 3dB. This level of sound is incredibly low and does not relate to the level that would 
be set on a noise limiting device. A noise limiter is a separate piece of equipment that monitors the 
sound levels in the room and will control the volume of the sound system to ensure it does not go 
beyond a set dB level. Some noise limiters will cut power from the sound equipment if the maximum 
sound level set is exceeded, some will provide a warning traffic light system which will flash when 
noise levels are nearing the maximum noise level and others may automatically control the volume. 
The limiter would need to be set at a level in which music noise would be inaudible in the adjacent 
premises. You would then need to ensure that this level is not adjusted.  
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Having considered the previous history and the information you have provided it is evident that the 
building is not adequately insulated and appropriate noise controls have not been implemented to 
minimise disturbance and prevent causing a public nuisance. In 2016 a noise consultant provided 
advise and made recommendations to ensure noise would  be inaudible at the nearest sensitive 
receptor, this included installation of sound insulation, creating a room within a room construction, 
silenced ventilation and servicing of space to prevent noise breakout, structural isolation of all 
speakers and sound lock lobbies. As far as I am aware none of these recommendations were 
implemented.  
 
Based on the structure of the building, lack of current noise controls and proximity of nearby 
sensitive receptor the changes to the times that regulated entertainment can take place in this 
premises are not appropriate. We consider that these changes are likely to result in a public 
nuisance and we therefore object to the proposals to vary the Premises Licence.  
 
For us to consider supporting a variation application, you as the applicant would need to provide 
evidence to demonstrate that noise from regulated entertainment (live/recorded music) will not 
have an adverse impact and be inaudible at the adjacent sensitive receptor. We would also expect a 
comprehensive noise management plan to demonstrate what controls and measures will be 
implemented to prevent unreasonable disturbance, this would include the installation of the noise 
limiter and considering reducing the timings regulated entertainment is performed. I have attached 
some guidance on noise management plans.  
 
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
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Environmental Control and Protection – Review hearing comments  
 

To Licensing officer : Hannah Hould   
 
From Environmental Control and Protection Officer: Kat Fowler 
 
Date: 21st May 2019 
 

Licensed premises 
address 
 

@Home, 5 Bridge Street, Salisbury, SP1 2ND 

Designated Premises 
Supervisor (DPS) 

Miss Louella Adamson 
 
 

Licensing review date 31st May 2019  
 

Environmental Health 
Reference: 
 

(WK/201904486) 

 
In June 2018 the DPS for this premises applied for a Premises Licence to operate until 
22.00hrs Monday to Sunday. Following noise concerns three specific conditions were 
imposed by JD Wetherspoons who operate The Kings Head Hotel.  
 
In March 2019 this department objected to a Premises Licence Variation application for 
@Home as we have concerns with the suitability of the building operating as a late 
night venue and a lack of confidence in management to control and manage noise 
from the premises to prevent a public nuisance. Our email response is attached in 
appendix 1, dated Monday 18th March 2019.  
 
This department supports Wiltshire Police with their application to review the Licence 
for @Home based on concerns we have with Miss Adamson’s ability to comply with 
licensing conditions and manage and control noise from the premises to prevent a 
public nuisance. 
 
Non Compliance with licensing conditions 
 
One of the conditions on the current Licence for @Home under Annex 2B, Prevention 
of Public Nuisance relates to the installation of a noise limiter in the premises through 
which all amplified music or voices must be played. The levels set must be in 
agreement with JD Wetherspoon PLC.  
 
In a meeting held with Miss Adamson on 21st February 2019 she advised that she was 
not aware that a noise limiting device had been installed within any of the rooms within 
@home where music is played. Following the meeting we received a photograph of a 
mixing system which Miss Adamson stated was the noise limiting device and was set 
between 0-3dB, attached in appendix 2. This is an incredibly low noise level and not 
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even perceptible by the human ear.   
 
On Tuesday 14th May 2019 a meeting was held at @Home between Miss Adamson, 
Katherine Fowler and Gary Tomsett (Environmental Protection and Control). Miss 
Adamson explained that all music in the upstairs room is played via two speakers 
which are fixed to the rear wall either side of the stained glass window. Miss Adamson 
pointed to an American Audio DB Display MKII unit. She advised that this unit is the 
noise limiter and if the noise level of the music goes into the red zone it is turned down. 
Appendix 3 shows a photograph of the DB Display MKII unit, this is a different unit to 
the one shown in photograph 1 in appendix 2.  
 
In the downstairs room music is played through a single Naim speaker. On nights with 
events DJ’s will set up their own equipment and speakers. When there are no events 
customers plug their own phones and/or devices into the Naim speaker provided by 
@Home. There are no other speakers, amplification systems, display units or noise 
limiters in this room.   
 
The DB display unit in the upstairs room is not a noise limiter, as there does not appear 
to be a microphone installed to measure noise in the premises from customers and 
music. Whilst the unit provides an indication of what the music noise levels are, it is not 
an effective way to control noise levels on a whole as it relies on someone 
continuously monitoring the LED display to ensure that the music has not been turned 
up. Further still the condition for a noise limiter was imposed to control all noise from 
music and customers in the premises. Therefore, the DPS has no  current measures in 
place to control and monitor the noise from the downstairs room.  
 
At the time of our visit the mixing system was situated on a worktop at the side of the 
premises next to a laptop which is exposed to possible tampering by customers. 
Though our visit was carried out when the premises was closed, so it is possible that 
this is moved out of reach when the business is operating.   
  
Lack of confidence in management  
 
This department has advised Miss Adamson on numerous occasions during meetings, 
email and phone correspondence what action is required to ensure measures are 
implemented to manage and control noise and to prevent noise breakout from the 
premises, but this has been ignored. Our most recent meeting was terminated due to 
the lack of engagement from Miss Adamson to implement control measures to manage 
noise from the premises effectively.  
 
In June 2018 Miss Adamson was advised to submit a noise management plan, this 
was repeated at a meeting held to discuss the variation application and again at a 
subsequent meeting. This department has still not received a noise management plan 
for the premises. 
 
Miss Adamson has also been advised several times to engage in the services of a 
noise consultant to take advice on the best possible solutions to insulate the premises 
to prevent sound breakout. There are various weak points in the building that could be 
improved to mitigate noise, including fresh air vents, single glazed windows in the rear 
lobby area, rear fire door. Miss Adamson has been advised to discuss with the 
freeholder, JD Wetherspoons whether there are any ways to improve the structural 
integrity of the building to further attenuate noise from the premises without breaching 
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the Grade II listed consent.  
 
Taking into consideration the history for the previous premises that operated in this 
building into the early hours of the morning, the close proximity of neighbouring 
businesses and residential properties it is evident that the building is poorly insulated 
and is not suitable to operate as a late night venue with regulated entertainment into 
the early hours of the morning.  
 
On 20th May 2019 a further email was sent by Kat Fowler to Miss Adamson advising 
her on what action she should take to comply with the Licensing conditions under 
prevention of public nuisance, make efforts to improve the insulation of the premises 
and effectively manage and control noise. This can be found in appendix 4.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


























